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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

City Council
City of Wahpeion
Wahpeton, North Dakota

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unif, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Wahpeton, North Dakota, as of and Tor the year ended December 31, 2008, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in {he tabie of contents. These financial
stalements are the responsibility of the City of Wahpaton, North Dakota, management. Our responsibility is
to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducied our audi in accordance with auditing standards generafly accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
fssued by the Complroller General of the United States. These standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonshle assurance about whether the financlal statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a iest basis, evidence supporting the amounls and
disciosures in the financial statements. An audit also Includes assessing the accounting pringiples used and
the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaiuating the overall financial statement
presentation, We balieve that ocur audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our cpinfon, the financial statements referred to above present faily, in all material respects, the
respactive financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activilies, the discretely
praesented component unif, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Wahpeton, North Dakota, as of December 31, 2008, and the respective changes in financial position and
cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles

generelly accepted in the United States of America,

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated Seplember 14,
2009, on our consideration of the City of Wahpeton, North Dakota internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisiens of laws, regulations, contracis, and grant agreemenis
and other matters. The purpose of that report is 1o dascribe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the resulis of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on ihe
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance, That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the resulls of our

audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 4 through 11
and 38 through 42 are not a required part of the basic financial statements bul are supplementary
information reguired by accounting principles generally accepted in the Uniled States of Amearica. We have
applied certain limited proceduras, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding lhe
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supolementary information, However, we did not

audit the information and express no opinion on it
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Our audit was conducied for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Wahpeton, North Daketa, basic financial statements, The staternent of fund activily i
presenied for purposes of additionat analysis and is not a required part of the hasic financial stalements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of zdditional analysis
as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of Stafes, Local Gaovermmenis,
and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements of the City of
Wahpeton, North Dakotz. The statement of fund activity and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In the audit of the basic financial statements and, in
our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in refation {o the basic financial statements taken as a

whole.

: /‘E g /)}’LZC_R‘\‘A\Q{T;‘Q] i R AP R
Robert R. Peterson

State Auditor

September 14, 2008




CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, Narth Dakota

MANAGEMENT'S CISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2008

The Managsment's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the Cily of Wahpelows financial performance
provides an overall review of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008. The
intant of the MD&A is to look al the City's financial performance as a whole, |t should, tharefore, be read in
canjunction with the basic financial slatemenls and refated notes.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Governmental assefs exceeded its liabllities (net assets) by $15,744,774 at the close of the most
recent fiscal year. Of this amount, $788,638, (unresiricted ret assets) may be used o meet the

governmenl's ongoing obligations.

« PBusiness-type assets exceeded Hs liabilities by $5,135,810 ai the close of the most recent fiscal
year.

« The lolal nel assels of governmental aclivities of the City of Wahpeton increased by $1,146,046 as a
result of the most recently completed fiscal year's operations.

« Net assets of the business-type activities increased by 260,355, as a result of ihe most recently
compleled fiscal year's operalions.

= Total revenues from all scurces were 35,931,230 for governmeantal activities and $5,833,857 on the
modified accrual basis.

=  Governmental expenditures exceeded revenues by $2,778,191 in the governmental fund-based
statements and governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $7,744,530.
Approximately 62% ($4,801,45868) of this is available for spending at the government's discretion
(unreserved fund balances).

= General fund revenues were $2,349,906 and general fund expenditures were §2,401,954. General
fund expenditures exceeded revenues by $52,048 and there were net transfers into the general fund
general fund totaling $142,262. Unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $560,471 or 23%
of the total 2008 general fund expenditures.

e Total revenues from all sources were $2,155,124 for business-iype activities for the year ended
Decamber 31, 2008, which inciuded capital grants and coniributions totaling $369,585.

s Total expenses wera $4,875,865 for governmental activities on the government-wide basis and total
expenditures were $8,612,048 on the maodified accrual basis. The total expenses of business-type
activities were $1,782,769.

e Spacial assessment bond debt of $1,850,000 was issued to help finance the cosls of four projects.

= Beginning net assets of governmental activities were decreased by al lotal of 3244571 and
beginning fund balances of governmental funds were decreased $231,200, for prior period
adjustment to include missed grant match payables and CDBG payables. Additionally, $13,371 of
special assessment bonds were reclassified from enterprise activities to governmental activities.

&

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual financial report consisis of a series of staterments and related footnotes. These statements are
organized so ihat the reader can understand the Cily of Wahpeton as a financial whole. The statements
then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial activities.

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activilies provide information about the activities of fhe whole
City, presenting beoth an aggregate view of the City's finances and a longer-term view of those finances.
Governmental Fund financial statements provide the next level of detall. These statements tell how services
were financed In the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. The fund financial stetements
also look at the City’'s major funds in separate columns with all other governmental funds presented in tofal in

one column.

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statemeants.




CiTY OF WAHPETON
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REPORTING ON THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Statement of Net Assels and Slatement of Aclivities

The government-wide francial statements are designed to provide readers wiih a broad overview of the Cily
of Wahpeton's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business and to answer the guestion "How
did the City do financially during the year ended December 31, 20087"

The Stafement of Net Asssts presents information on all of the City's assets and liabiiities, with the difference
betwesen the two reported as nef assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assefs may scrve as a

usef indicator of whather the financial posttion of the Clly is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information on how the City's net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. This statement is presented using the accrual basis of accounting, which means that all
changes In net assets are reported as scon as the underlying evenl giving rise lo the change ceouts,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported In the staternent
for some items that will only resuit in cash flows In fulure fiscal periods (for example, uncollected sales tax,
and earned but unused vacation ieave). Both the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activilies

present information as follows:

Governmental activiies — this inciudes most of the City's basic services which are primarily
supported by property and sales taxes, intergovernmental revenues, user fees and interest income.
Business-type activities — this includes those services which are intended to recaver all or =
significant part of their costs through user feas.

L]

The government-wide financial statements include not only Wahpeton City iiself (known as the primary
government), but alse a legafly separate library for which the City is financiafly accountable. Financial
information for the component unil is reported separately from the financial information presented for the

primary goverment itself,

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 11-12 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to mainiain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Wahpeton, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal

requirements.

The fund financial statemenis provide detailed information about the City's significant funds — not the City as
a whole. The City's funds can be divided into two categaries — gevernmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmenial funds are used to account for essentially the same functions repotted as governmental -
activities in the govermnment-wide financial statemenis. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the government operations and the basic services it provides, and are reporied on the
modified accrual basis of accounting which focuses on available expendable resources. This allows the
reader to evaiuvate the City's short-term financing requirements. Because the foous of governmental funds is
narrower than that of the govemment-wide financial statements, It is useful to compare the information
presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for geovernmental activities in the
goverrment-wide financial statements. By deing so, readers may belter understand the iong-term impact of
the governmeni's near-term financing decisions, Both the governmental fund balance siheel and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expendiiures, and changes In fund belances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate the comparison between the governmental funds and the government-wide

financial statements.

Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes In fund balances for the general fund, and the following other major funds: capital
improvements fund, sates tax operating fund, sales lax reserve fund, revolving loan fund, debt service fund
and capital projects fund. Data from the other 45 spacial revenue governmental funds are combined into a
single, aggregated preseniation litted "Other Governmental Funds®,

1




CITY OF WAHPETON
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The Cify of Wahpeton adepts an annual budget for the generg) fund, capital inprovements fund, sales tax
operating fund, sales tax reserve fund, and the revolving loan fund.

The governrmental fund statements may be found on pages 13-14 and 16-17 of this repori.

Froprigtary Funds - the City of Wahpeton maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used
to report activities that charge for services it provides to ouigide customers. The enterprise funds are
presented as husiness-type activities in the government-wide statements. The City of Wahpeton uses
enterprise funds to account for s Water Operations and Sewer Operations as major funds and lthe
remaining enterprise funds are combined inio a single, aggregated presentation {itled "Cther Enterprise
Funds®. Proprietery fund statermnents provide the same type of information as the government-wide

statements, only in more detail.

The proprietary fund statements may be found on pages 18-21 of this report.

Notes o the Financial Statements

The netes provide additional information that is essential {0 a fyll Understanding of the dala provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements, The noles to the financial slatements can ke found on

pages 22-37 of this report.
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS AWHOLE

The following two tables’ present condensed information on the Gity's Net Assets and Changes in Net Assels
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 and 2007. As noted earlier, net assels may serve over time as
a useful indicator of the City's financial position. In the case of the City of Wahpeton, assets exceeded
liabilities by $15,744,774 at the close of the most recent fiscal year for governmental activities and
$5,135,810 for enterprise business-type activities. The City of Wiahpeton's net assets includes its investment
in capital assats {e.g. land, buildings, infrastructure, equipment, and vehicles), less any related debt used fo
acquire those assels that are still ouistanding, The City of Wanpelon uses these capital assets to provide
services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not availaple for future spending. Although the City of
Wahpeton's investment in ifs capital assets is reported net of related debt ($3,856,801), It should be noted
that the resources needed {o repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assels

themselves cannot be used to liguidate these liabilities.

TABLE 1
NET ASSBETS

December 31, 2008 and 2007

2008 2008 2007 2007
Assels; Governmental Bysingss-Type  Governmental  Business-Type
Current Assets § 8,753,110 §1,144,822 $ 0.250,i72 $1,161,944
Noncurrant Assets 3,841,809 - 3,929.475 -
Capital Assets {net of accum. depreciation) 15,337,370 6494834 12,571,545 | 5.401.387
Total Assels §27.832,379 $7,839,658 $25,751,152 37,563,311
Liabiiittes: a
Current Liabilities 3 1,744 481 ¢ 199,758 F 1,606,877 § 215,022
Long-Term Liabitities 10,443,114 2,304,088 8,545 587 2.471,934
Total Lishilites T$512.187,605 92503848  §11.152464  $2.687.858

NET ASSETS:

Invested in Cepilal Assels, nal of Related Debt % 3,856,801 54,034 468 4 2,042 281 $3,749,630
Reaslricted 10,899,237 - 12,216,750 -
Unrestricted 788,636 1,101,342 338,697 1,125,826

Tolal Net Assels 15744774 §5185,810  $14,508,728 $4.875.455
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A large porlion of the City of Wahpetorn's net assets fotaling 510,898 237 (70%) represents resources that
are subject fo extemal restrictions on how they may be used (debt service and other special purposes
financed by restricted tax fevies), The remaining balance of unrestricied net assels totaling £788,8368 (5%)
may be used to meet the government's ongeing obligations to cilizens and creditors. At the and of the 2008,
the City of Wahpeton is able to report positive balances in aif three categories of net assets for governmental
activiies, as well as both categories for the business-type activities. Current assets decreased by $497,062
(5%) for governmental activiies. Capital assets and invested in capilal assels, net of related debt for
governmental activities both increased significanily by $2,765,825 (22%]) due to lhe addition of infrastructure
and buildings in 2008, Businass-type assets, liabilities and net assets equily did not significantly fluctuate.

TABLE i}
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
As of December 31, 2008 and 2007 o

2008 2008 2007 2007
Governmenta!  Business-Type Govemmental Business-Type
Revenues Activities Activities Aclivities Activities
Program Revenues.,
Charges for Services 5 661,802 $1.765,451 $ 688,925 $1,715,549
Cperating Grants & Contributions 760,395 - 365,947 -
Capltal Grants & Contrbutions 53,547 368,585 1,337,957
General Revenues:
Taxes 3,636,018 3,161,216 -
State Aid 501,139 - 473,652 -
Interest Earnings 189,283 17,657 445,328 -
Miscellanecus Revenue 126,856 2,431 199,462 21,881
_{21,319) - (20,564) -
Total Revenues $ 5,808,611 $2,155.124  § 6,628,823 $1,737 530
Expenses
General Government $ 683,621 3 - § 650,557 3 -
Public Safety 1,639,235 - 1,455,861 -
Public Works 1,127,485 - 1,043,084 -
Economic Development 780,521 - 1,040,938 -
Conservation of Natural Resources 11,336 - - -
Culture and Recreation 184,151 - 118,421 -
Other 13,160 - 8,282 -
Capital Outiay - - 4,216,211 -
Interest and Fees 436,346 - 350,890 -
Water Operations - 848,300 - 344,138
Sewer, Garbage and Olber - 934,469 - 831,287
Total Expenses 3 4,875,865 $ 1,782,769 T 8,024,544 $1,675,425
Excess before transfers/special items  § 1,024,046 $ 372,355 $(2,294,521) $ 62,105
Transfers 112,000 (112,000 47,552 (47,552)
Change in Net Assets $ 1,148,046  § 260,355  §(2,246,969) 5 14,553
Net Asseis — January 1 514,843,299 $ 4,862,084 516,876,820 4,847,531
Prior Period Adjustments (244,571) 13,371 113,348 -
Met Assets — December 31 $156,744,774 $ 5,135,810 514,843,259 $4 862,084

Taxes and special assessment taxes constituted 62%, operating grants and contributions 13%, charges for
services 11%, invesiment earmings 3%, capital grants and contributions 1%, state aid 8%, and miscellaneous
revenue made up 2% of total revenues of governmental activities of the City for year ended December 31,

2008,
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General government constituted 14%, public safety 34%, public works 23%, economic developrment 168%,
interest and fees 9%, and the remaining 4% is splil among three other sategories of lofal expenses for
governmental activities for the year ended December 31, 2008

The City of Wahpaton's total net governmental activities assels equily increased by $1,146,04G {8%) for the
vear ended December 31, 2008. The nel increase is primarily due lo the addition of infrastruclure and
buildings of $2,916,578 exceeding the new debt issuance of $1,8580,600 for governmenial activities.
Business-type activities net assets increased overall by $260,355 (5%) primarily due to an Increase in
infrasiructure received by capital contributions.

It is noted that governmental activilies revenues decreased $719,912 (11%) and business-type revenues
increased overall by $417,594 {24%). The primary cause of the decrease in governmental revenues was a
decrease of approximately $1.2 million in capital grants & contributions intergovernmental revenues. The
decrease in intergovernmental revenues is attributable to a large State Waler Commission grant received
totaling $1.337,957 in 2007 for the 5-1-97 Flood Phase Il project.  The overall increase in business-type
revenues is primarily due to an increase in capital grants and contributions of $369,585. Charges for
services only fluctuated (increased) by $49,802 (3%) from 2007 to 2008 for business type activities largely
influenced by the reinstatement of a vector control fee that had been suspended for the first § months of

2007,

[t is noted that governmental activities expenses decreased $4,048,479 (45%) and business-lype expenses
incressed by $107.344 (6%). The cause of the large decrease in governmental expenses was a large
decrease in capital outlay In 2008 compared with 2007, The increase in business-type expenses is largely
due to an increase in the water mater replacament program and other operating expenses.

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Wahpeton uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-refated legal requirements,

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City of Wahpeton's governmental funds is fo provide information on near-term inflows,
outfows, and balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of
Wahgeton's financing requiremants. [n particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure
of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. As of the end of the
current fiscal year, the City of Wahpelon's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$7.744,630, The total unreserved fund bhalances are $4,801,456. The remainder of fund balance is reserved
to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been commitied to pay debt
service 31,966,235 related o capital improvements, and is reserved for inventories $10,814 and loans
$966,125. Total fund balances of governmental funds decreased by $710,401 primarily due to expenditures
exceeding revenues by $2,778,191 combined with a debt issuance proceeds totaling $1,828,681, net of

discount and expenses.

it is noted ihat total revenues for governmentat funds decreased $1,235,244 (17%) for the year ended
December 31, 2008 going from $7,069,101 fo $5,833,857. The primary cause of the revenue decrease was
a decrease of $1,337,957 in cost share cash reimbursement from the ND State Water Commission for
expenses related to the Fiood Mitigation Phase |l project in 2007, Expenditures decreased overall by
$1,454,594 {14%) going from $10,066,642 to $8,612,048. In particular, the major capital projects fund
expenditures decreased overall by $2,858,644 (68%) primarily related to a decrease in the 5-1-87 Flood
Phase |l fund infrastruciure consiruction project of $2.6 million.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Wahpeton. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unreserved fund balence of the general fund was $56580,471. Unreserved fund balance represents 23% of
total general fund expenditures. Revenues of the general fund totaled $2,348,906 and expenditures totaled
$2,401,954 for the year ended December 31, 2008. Revenues of the general fund decreased by $44,294
{2%) and expenditures decreased only $1,087. Of the decrease In revenues, 134,905 is represented by a
decreasa n interest income due fo falling inferest rates.
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The fund halance of the Cliy of Wahpelon's general fund Increased by $90,214 {18%) during ihe current
fiscal vear due to fransfers in exceeding transfers out by $142,262,

The sales tax reserve fund balance decreasad by $1,089,763 (89%) due to payments for renovating the
armory building.  The capital improvements fund balance decreased $46,200 due to street depariment
equipment purchases. The capital projects fund balances increased by $545,034 due to the issuance of
bonds of $1,850,000 for various capital projects.  The sales lax operating fund balance decreased by
$48,730 (4%) due to transfers out. The revelving loan fund balance decreased $82,733 (6%) due 1o
continuation of an affordable housing program to bulld spec homes on city owned lois. The debt service
fund balance increased by $3,023 due to an increase in fransfers in for debt payments. The other

government funis balance decreasad $81,246 (4%).

Propriefary Funds
The City of Wahpeton'’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial siatemenis, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Water Operating Fund totaled $1.783,718. Total increase in net assels for this
fund was 562,234 (4%). Tolal other enterprise funds nst assets equily totaled $§3,352,082, an increase of
$196,121 {6%). Total Sanitary Sewer Cperating Fund net assets increased $190,088 (6%). There was an
increase of approximately $78,000 in charges for services revenue in the sanitary sewsr operating fund and
an increase of $25,000 in other enterprise funds charges for services revenue,

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differances between the original budget and the final amended budget for the City's general operating fund
was a relatively minor, the variance with final budget is $20,024 {1%) decrease in expenditures and an
incresse in revenue of $77.384 {3%). Transfers in were increased by $2,703, and transfers out were
increased by $57,011 in the variance with Final Budget. The general fund budget was amended to actual
general ledger amounts for the year ended December 31, 2008, as were the other major funds. More
information regarding budgetary comparison information may be found in the budgstary comparison
schedules on pages 38-43 of this report and in Note 2 on page 27 of this report,

CAPITAL ASSET ADMINISTRATION

The City of Wahpeton's invesiment In capital assets for its governmenial activities as of December 31, 2008
amounted to $15,337,370 (net of accumulated depreciation), representing an increase of $2,765.825 (22%)
due fo the addition of net infrastruciure folaling $1,548,868 (various projects) and buildings (Wahpelon
Community Center Renovation) tolaling $1,357,810, The Increase in businass-iype activities capital assets
was $93,647 (1.5%) due to an increase in infrastructure of $291,895 and increased depreciation expense.
This investment in capital asseis includes land, infrastructure, buildings, equipment and vehicles.

TABLE HI
CAPITAL ASSETS
{Net of Accumulated Depreciation)
Dacember 31, 2008 and 2007

2008 2008 2007 2007
Governmental Business-Type Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Activities Activities
Land § 435678 3 - § 435678 3 -
Bulldings 3,192,002 1,627,206 1,869,388 1,673,545
Equipment 2,276,968 1,092,362 2,186,875 1,162,509
Vehicles 119,734 10,781 125,604 14,376
Infrastruchire G,312,088 3,764 485 _ 7,854,000 3,580,938
Total Capital Assets $15,337.370 56,484,834 $12,571,545 $6,401,367

Addilicnal information on he City of Wahpelon's capital assets can be found in note 9 of this report found on
pages 28-30.
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DEBT ADMINISTRATION

At year-end the City had tolal long-term deblt for governmental activities totaling $11,380,489, a net averall
increase of $852,205 (8%) over lhe prior year. The increase was caused by normal scheduéed debt
nayments on existing debt combined w;th the issuance of $1,850,000 in special assessment boends for four
projects (Phase | iﬂ’iPFCF‘DTOT Sewer, 168" Avenua Phase i & 2108 Intarsaction, Phase 1l 16" 51, & 15th Ave.,

and Phase IV 17" Ave. Westside Development). Business-type activities long-term dsbt decreased by
§191,371 (7%) going from $2,651,737 to $2,460,368. The decrease was due solely to scheduled debt

payments,

TABLE IV
OUTSTANDING LONG-TERM DEBT
As of December 31, 2008 and 2007
Total Due Total Due
Outstanding Within OQuistanding Within
Dec. 31, 2008 Cne Year Dec. 31, 2007 Cne Year

Governmental Activities:

Special Assessment Bonds Payable  $11,165,000 $1.000,000 510,271,629 % 961,348
Lozns Payable - - 113,853 113,853
Leases Payable 215,469 51,977 142,782 27,145
Tola!l Governmental Activities  $11,380,480  §$1,051,977  $10,528,264 $1,102,348
Business-Type Activities;
Revenue Bonds Payable % 2460386 & 180,000 $ 2,651,737 $ 188,225
Total Long-Term Debt $13,840,835 $1,231 977 $13,180,001 51,280,571

Note 12 to the financial slatements describes the City's long-term debt in greater defail and is found on
pages 31-33 of this report.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BURGETS AND RATES

The 2009 budget included a mill levy increase of 6.3 mills going from 116.47 to 122.77. The value of a mili
for the City for the 2009 budget increased from $12,890 to $13,000 per mill.

Tolal appropriations for eperations for 2008 decreased by approximately $3,467,799 from 2007 levels. The
decrease is caused primarily by the 2007 one-time cash advance funding of $3,007,583 to the Army Corps of
Engineers for the Flood Mitigation project and the completion of several open anfrastrL cture projecls in tate
2007. Total appropriations for operations increased by approximately $862,601 from 2008 levels. The 8.7%
increase is attributed to the 2009 capital project budget for construction of the Dakota Avenue corridor,

CONTACTING THE CITY’'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances and lc demonstrate the
City's accountability for the money it receives to the citizens of Wahpeton. If you have any questions abaut
this report or need further infarmation, contact the Gity of Wahpeton Firance Director, Darcie Huwe, 1900 4"

Street North, Wahpeton, ND 58075, phone 701-642-8448, fax 701- 542-1428, email darcieh@wahpeion.com,

or visit us anline at hitp./www wahpeton.com.
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CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, Norh Dakoia

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Docember 31, 2004

Componrant

Primary Government Unit
Governmental Business-type '
clivities Activities Total Library
ASSETS
Cash, cash cguivalants, and invastments § 7083527 % 5g7 668 % 8,051,195 5 73247
Utility billings receivable - 147,154 147,154
Accounis receivable 23738 - 23,738
intergovernmantal receivabie 306,184 - 306,184 -
Taxes receivable 187,687 - 187,687 22,810
Special assessments recaivable 205,035 - 205,035 -
Loans raceivable 066,125 - 866,125 -
inventories 10,814 10,814 -
Long-term receivabla:
Uncedified special assessmants raceivable 3,841,858 3.841.889
Caplial Assels:
Land 438,878 - 435,878
Buildings 3,162,002 1,627,206 4,819,208 -
Equipment 2,276,968 1,082,362 3,368,330 20,648
Vehides 119,734 10,781 130,515 -
Infrastructure 9,212,888 3,7G4 485 13,077,473 -
Totsl Capital Assets $ 15337370 % 64984834 § 21832204 % 20,648
Tolatl Assets % 27,932,379 § 7530656 § 35572035 § 116,705
LIABILITIES
Accounis payable g 186,344 § - 8 196,344 % -
Accrued payroll benefiis 40,214 - 40,214 -
Grant match payable 310,000 - 310,000 -
CDBG payabls 85,200 - §9,200 -
Accrued Interest payable 78,758 19,7508 96 514
Long-term Habilities:
Portion due or payabie within one year:
Leases payable 51,8977 - 51,977 -
Special asssssment bonds payable 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 -
Revenus bonds payable - 180,000 180,060 -
Portion due or payable after one year
Leases payabie 163,492 - 163,492 -
Special assessment bonds payable 10,165,000 - 10,165,000 -
Revenue bonds payable - 2,280,366 2,280,366 -
Compensated absences payable 114,622 23722 138,344 2,116
Total Liabilities % 12,187,605 § 2503848 ¢ 146881451 § 2,116
NETASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt $ 39569801 & 4034468 § 7,991,369 % 20,648
Restricted for:
Dbt service 5,048,158 - 5,848,158 -
Public safaty 184,333 - 184,332 -
Pubtic works 148,720 - 148,720
Economic/job development 3,945,407 3,945,407 -
Culture and recreation 6,621 - 6,621 93,941
Conservation of natural resources 54,310 - 54,310 -
Capital improvements 615,054 - 515,054
Other special purposes 08,634 - 95,634
Unrestricted 788 636 1,101,342 1,889,978 -
Total Nat Assels $ 15744774 % 5135810 % 20830584 % 114,589

The notes o the financial statements are an inlegral part of this financial statement.




CITY OF WAHPETON

hinclon, North Dakota

RENT OF ACTIMITIES
iher 34, 2008

Program Revenues

Net {Expensa} Ravanue and
Changss in Maf Assets

Eeas, Fines,

Cperating

Capital

Business-

Companent

ang Charges Grants and Grants and Sovernmental Type Unit
Funclions/Pregrarns fxpenses for Services  Contributigns  Confributions Aclivities Activitles Tolal Licrary
Primary Governmernt:
Covernmental Activities:
Ceneral governmant 5 683821 % 489,495 § 3002 & 5 (181,124} S {781.124)
Public safety 1,838,235 132,746 216,844 - {1,285,545) {1.269.545)
Public works 1,127 4495 28,751 537,622 53,547 {508,575) (508,575)
Cuiture and recreation 184,151 - 2,827 - {181.324) {181,324}
Coenservaiion of natural resources 11.338 - - - {11,336) {11,336}
Econamic developmernt 780,521 - - - {780.521) (780,521
Cther 13,160 - - {13,180}
Interest & fees on long-term debt 436,346 o - - {436,346)
Tolat Governmental Activilles § 4875865 % 661,892 § 760395 § 53.547 3 (3,398,931} % (3,3988931}
Business-Type Aglivities:
Water cperziions 5 348,300 § 941,863 % 3 64,348 % % 187,942 § 157812
Sanitary sewer operaons 560,787 443 888 - 305,236 - 183,337 188,337
Garbage & vther enferorise 373,682 arezon - - - 6018 5,018
Total Busingss- Type Activities $O1782769 5 4V85451 5 - 5 368,585 b - $ 352287 % 352,287
Tatal Primary Governmeant 3 6658534 § 2427443 § 750355 5 423132 3 {3,369, 631} % 352267 5 (3,047,664}
Component Lnit:
tibrary 5 192,579 & 3,081 % 28597 3 - % {160,891)
Gupaial Revenues;
Taxas:
Properly taxes, levied for geners] purposes 4 766,656 & - % BB 656 $ 192,874
Froperly faxes, levied for special purposes 738,263 - 738,263 -
Special assmt. and property taxes, fevied for debt service 801,474 - 801.474 -
Sales @wxes 1,321,625 - 1,331,625 -
Stale qidd distribution, other unrestricted granis & contributions 501,139 - 504,139 11,335
Unrestricted investment earnings 188,283 17,657 208,840 -
Miscellanaous 126,858 2,431 128,287 3,738
2ond discountissuance costs (21,319) - (21,319) -
Transfers 112,000 {112,000) - .
Tatat Generat Revenuss and Transfers 4545977 § {31912) 3§ 4,454,085 207,884
Changes in Nat Assets § 1,146048 5 260356 3 1405401 § 46,893
MNei Asseis - January 1 $ 14,843,259 $ 4862084 F 197055383 3 67,596
Prior Perod Adjustments (244,57 1) 13,371 {231,200} -
Net Assets - Jarmuary 1, as restated § 14,590,726 54875455 § 19,474,183 & 67,586
Neat Assels - December 31 2 15744 774 $5135810 & 20880584 5 114589

The notes o the financial statements are ar integral part of this financial stalemant,







Capital Other Total
Projecls  Governmental Governmsnial
Fund Funds Funds
3 5 19688668 § 7,083,527
- . 73,738
58,026 - 306,184
- - 44,568
8,155 966,125
- g7,875 187,687
- 205,035
- 10,814 10,814
$ 35026 § 2081512 § 8797678
% 120,201 ¥ - § 196,344
- 4,863 40,214
- 310,000
- - 69,200
44 568 - 44 568
- 97,875 302,722
$ 164,768 & 102,738 § 1,083,048
8 $ - % 1,866,235
- 10,814 10,874
- 53,155 886,125
- - 560,471
- 1,961,805 3,625,932
(108,743 - 615,053
$(108,743) § 1978774 § 7,744,630
$ 55026 § 2081512 § 8787678
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CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahnaton, North Dakola

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Decernber 31, 2008

Total Fund Befances of Governmental Funds

Total net assels reparted for governmenial activilies in the staterment of net assels
is differant because:

Capital assels used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
are not reported in the governmenial funds,

Cost of Capital Assels % 19887674

Lass Accumulated Depreciation (4,550,304}

Net Capital Assets 16,337,370
Property laxes & special assessments receivable will be collected after year-end,
hut are not available soon encugh lo pay for the surrent period's expendilures and
therafore are reported as deferred revenues in the funds.

§ 187,687

Taxes Receivable
205,035 392,722

Special Assessments Receivable

Long-term uncertified special assessments receivable are not reported in the funds
because they are unavailzble to pay the current period's expenditures. 3,641,820
i ang-term liabifities applicable to the City's governmeantal aclivities are not due and

payabla in the current perind and accardingly are not reporied as fund liabifittes.

Interest on long-term deht is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is

recognized as an expenditure when dus. All liabilties-both current and long-term

are reportad in the statement of net assets. Bafancses at December 31 are made

up of the following liabilities:

Special Assessment Bonds Payable 3 (11,165,000)
Leases Payahla {215,464}
Interast Payable (76,756}

Compensated Absences Payable (114,622)

Total Long-Term Lisbilities (11,571,847

Total Net Assets - Governimantal Activiiies $ 15744774

The notes to the financial statements are an integral pant of ks linanclal slatement.







T Capilsl | Gther Tolal
Projects Governmental  Governmentsl
Funds Funds Funds

i 5 88BB8Y & 1,408,527

532,650 - 1,331,625
- - 854,040

- 476,658

- - 144 568
141,123 207,893 1,261,534
- 28,751 40,766

- - g 24h

- 15,472 189,283

5,808 63,414 117,611

3 879,673 & 1,010317 $ 5833857
$ - % 180025 § 649,373
- 287,485 1,603,272

- 281,744 1,044,878

- 51,866 184,151

- 11,336 11,338
213,867 THG,234

4,944 - 13,160
1,365,489 - 2,768,493
- - 1,138,275

- - 411,623

- - 6,253

3 1,370.433 § 1006523 & 5612048

3 (690,860} & 3,784 & (2,773,191)

3 - % 252209 % 1,352,927
1,850,000 - 1,650,000

- - 127,109
(21,319) - (21,219)
(582,787} (337.248) {1,240,827)

% 1,235884 8§ {85,040y § 2,087,790

§ 545034 % {81.746) § {710,401}

3 (653,777 § 2,060,020 % £,686231

- - (231,200}

5 (653,777) 5 2,360,020 % B455.0H

5 (108,743) 8 1978774 § 7744630
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CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Net Change in Fund Balances - Tolal Governmental Funds

The change in net assats reportad for governmental activities in the statement of
activities is different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as axpenditures. However, in the statement

of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their esiimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceaded

depreciation in the current year.

Capital Asset Addilions & Capital Contributions
Current Year Depreciation Expenss

In the Statement of Activities, the loss or gain on sale or disposal of capilal assets
is recognized. The fund financial statements recognize only the proceeds from
these sales,

L.oss on Disposals of Capital Assets

Repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets, while the
issuance of debt increases long-term liabilities in the stalement of net assats.
This is the amount by which debl repayment exceeded the issuance of debt,

Repayment of Bonds
Repayment of Leases
Repaymenl of Loans
Issuance of Bonds
issuance of Capital Leases

Coliections on uncertified special assessments is a revenus in the governmental
funds, but the collection reduces the long-term receivable in the statement of nat
assets. This is the amount of receivable collection,

Coliection on Long-Term Receivable
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not reguire the use of current
financial resources and are not reported as expenditures in governmenial funds.

MNet Increase in Compensated Absences
Met Increase in Interest Payable

Some reverues reportad on the statement of activities are not reported as revenuss
in the governmental funds since they do not represent availabie resources to pay
current expenditures. This consists of the increase in laxes and special
assessments receivable,

Net Increase in Taxes Recaivable
Net increase in Special Assessments Receivable

Change in Net Assets of Governmeantal Activities

The noles to the financial statements are an intagral part of this financial statement,
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§ (710401}

$ 3,297,034

(482,682) 2,844,352
(48,527}

$ 970,000

54,422

113,853

(1,850,000)
127,108 (838,834
(87,576)

§  (8,324)
(18,470) (26,704)

$ 24,719
19,107 43,826




CITY OF WAHFPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2008

Business-lype Activilles - Enterprise Funds

Waler Sanitary Other
Operating Sewer Enterprise
Fund Operating Funds Total
ASSETS
Current Assels!
Cash § B22840 § 217268 5 157580 & 997,668
UHitity billings receivable 49,458 49,085 47,711 147 154
Moncuirent Assets:
Capital assefs:
Buildings 1,569,300 57,908 - 1,627,206
Equipment 393,742 698,620 - 1,082,362
Vehicles - 10,781 - 10,781
Infrastructure 1,341,712 2422773 - 3,764,485
Total capital assets $ 3,304,754 5 3,190,080 & - % 5,494,834
Total Assets $ 3977052 $ 3457333 % 205271 § 7,635,556
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accrued interest payable 5 17,258 § 2,500 § -3 18,758
Revenue bonds payable 165,000 15,000 - 180,000
Noncurrent Liabilities: .
Revenue bond payable 1,895,366 285,000 - 2,780,366
Compensated absences 15,710 7,793 219 23,722
Total Liabilities $ 2193334 $ 310293 § 219§ 2 503,846
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 1,144,388 § 2,890,080 3 - 3 4,034 468
Unrestricted 635,330 256 980 205,052 1,101,342
Taofal Net Assets $ 1,783,718 § 3147040 5 205052 3 5135810

The nates lo the financial siatements are an integrat part of this financial stelement.
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CITY OF WARPETON
Wahpeion, North Dakota

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUNT NET ASSETS

PROFRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2068

Operating Revenugs:
Charges for sales and services

Salaries and wages
Benefils
Haating fuel, gas and oil
Utlities - electricity and telephone
Servica contracls
Waste removal
Sugplies and postage
Repairs and mainlenance
Equipment/Lift Station Maintenance
Eguipment & Maintenance
ingurance & Safety
Chemicais
Professional fees and other servica charges
Meters/hydrants/welis/lagoons/manholes
Wells
Audit fees
Muosquito contfrolfspraying
discellaneous Operating
Processing fees
Worker's commpensation
Depreciation

Total Cperating Expenses

Opersling Income

Nonoperating Revenues {Expenses):
Interast Income

Capital contributions from governmental funds

Interast expense
Service charges and administration fees
Miscellaneous

Total Nonaperating Revenue (Expenses)

Income Before Contributions and Transfers
Transfers out
Change in Net Assels

Total Net Assels - January 1
Prior Period Adjusiments

Total Net Assets - January 1, as reslated

Total Net Assets - Decamber 31

Business-type Activities - Enlerprise Funds

Water Sanitary Gther
Oparatng Sewer Enterprise Enterprise
Fund Operating Funds Total

% 041863 8 443,888 3 378,700 § 1,765,451
3 230,176 % 125,191 § 12814 § 388,281
58,490 35,624 3,601 107,805

18,430 3,042 - 22,472

31,854 48,517 84,936 195,407

5,542 - 1,350 7,892

- - 269,829 209,828

2,110 5,194 5,608 23,812

26,664 48,076 - 74,740

- 29,117 - 28,117

35,051 8,268 18,750 58,069

24,067 12,038 - 36,108
128,348 5,959 8,904 144,251

2,400 5,445 - 7,845

20,148 60,594 5,609 96,352

4,118 - - 4,118

3,135 2,736 - 5,871

- - 5,470 6,470

7.446 2,083 15,621 25,130

2,520 - - 2,520

2,928 324 - 3,252

116,725 159,384 - 276,119

i 780,251 % 551,822 3 373,682 5 1,705,505
% 161,612 % (107,734) & 6018 % 59,886
3 17657 5 - $ 3 17,657
84,349 305,236 389,585
(56,840) (7.827) - (64,467)
{11,208} (1,638} - (12,747}

B85 1,781 5 2,431

$ 14,622 % 297,832 b 5§ 312,458
5 176,234 § 190,098 3 6,023 & 372355
& (112,000) & ) - %5 {(112,000)
§ 64,234 § 180,088 3 5,023 § 288,355
$  1,719484 § 2,943,571 b 199029  § 4,862,084
- 13,371 - 13,371

§ 1718484 § 2956842 & 188,028 & 4875485
35135810

1783718 § 3147040 3 205,052

=5

The notes io the financial staterments are an integral part of this financiat statemeant




CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakola

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts frem customers and users
Payments to suppliers

Paymeanis to employess

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Nongapital Financing Activities:
Transfer to other funds

Cash Flows from Capilal and Related Financing Activities:

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Miscellansous income
Frincipal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Fees paid on capital debt

Net Cash Provided {Usad) by Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Gash Flows from Investing Aclivities:
interest received

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, January 1
Gash and Cash Equivatents, December 31

Reconciliatian of operating income to net cash
providet (used) by operating activities:
Operating income
Adiustments to reconcite operating income to
net cash provided (used) by operating acthvilies:
Depreciation expense
Change in assels and fabilities:
Utility billings receivable
Accounis payable
Compansated absences

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Aclivilies

The notas to the financial statements are an ntegral part of lhis financial statement.

Water Sanitary Other Total
Operating Sewer Enterprise Enterprise
Fund Fund Funds Funds
5 958,665 § 426,302 % 372387 § 17574458
(370,575) (232,144} (357,077} (959,7986)
(297 806} (159,704} (16,8473 (474,157)

§ 200285 § 34544 § {1,337) § 323482
T (112,000) § - 9 - & (112,000
& 565 § 1,760 & 5 % 2,430
{163,000) {15,000} - (178,000}

(58,084) {7,875) - (65,559}
(11,209) {1,537} - {12,748)

$ (231,828 § (22,652) § 5§ (254 273)
§ 17656 % - 35 -3 17,658
$ {35587) § 11892 § (1,332) § {25,127}
$ 558527 § 205376 & 158,882 § 1,022,785
$ BA2840 % 217268 § 157560 § 997 668
$ 161812 § (107,734) $ 6018 & 59,896
116,725 159,384 - 276,118
16,803 (17,496) (7,313} (8,006}
(5,716} (731} - {5,447)

861 1,411 {42) 1,830

$ 200285 % 34544 3§ (1,337 § 323,492




CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakola

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2008

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Wahpeton, North Dakota operates under a Home Rule Charter adopted in 1688,
The financial statemenis of the cily have been prepared in conformily with accounting
principlas generally accepled in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to
government units. The Governmental Accounting Stendards Board (GASB] is the accepted
standard setling body for establishing governmental accounting and finencial reporting
pringiples. The more significant of the government’s accounting policies are described betow.

A, Financial Reborting Entity

The accompanying financial stalements present the activiies of the Gity of Wabpeton. The
city has considered all potential component units for which the city is financially accountable
and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relatlonships with the city
are such that exciusion wouid cause the city's financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete.  The Governmenial Accouniing Standards Board has set foith criteria to be
cansidered in determining financial accountability. This criteria includes appointing a voting
majority of an organization's governing body and (1) the ability of the City of Wahpeton to
impose ils will on that erganization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the City of Wahpeton.

Based on these criterla, the component unit discussed below is included within the city's
reporting enlity because of the significance of its operational or financiai refaticnships with the

city.

COMPONENT UNITS

In conformity with accounting principles generally accepied in the United States of America,
the financial statemenis of component unit have been included in the financial reporting entity
as a discretely presented component unit.

Discretely Presented Component Unit - The component unit columns in the government-wide
financial statemants include the financial data of the cily's component unit.  This unit is
reported in separate columns to emphasize that it is legally separate from the city.

{each Public Library - The City's governing board appoints a voting majority of the members
af the iibrary's Board. The city has the authority to approve or modify the Library's
operational and capital budgets. The city also must approve the tax levy established by the
Library. Complete financial statements for the library can be obtained af Leach Fublic Library,
417 Second Avenue North, Wahpeton, ND 58075, The library [s reported as a governmental

fund type,

Biended Component Unit: Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are,

in substance, part of the government’s operations and so data from {hese units are combined
with data of the primary government.
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CITY OF WAHPETON

Noles to the Financial Stalernents - Conlinued

City of Wahpeton Econornig Deveiopment Commission / Job Devalopment Authority . — The
City of Wahpeton Econormic Development Commission governing hoard consists of two Clty
Gouncil members and five additional members appointed by the City Gouncll, The Econormic
Development Commission is repartad as if it wers part of the city's operations. The Economic
Development Commission activity is reported in various special revenue funds, some of which

are major funds.

RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

The cily is accountable for the following legally separate entity because it appoinis a veoling
majority to its governing board. Aithough, the city is not financiaily accotntable for this entity,
as defined by GASH Statement 14, the city did provide operating grants to it as foilows:

erorf [ $54,618 J

The City of Wahpeton is accountable for the Bois de Sioux Goif Club, a legally separate entity
pecause it appoints & voting majority to s governing board. The city also ovns the land used
by the galf club. The city cannot and does not control the cperations of the club.

8. Basis of Preseniation

Governmeni-wide statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities
display information aboul the primary government, the City of Wahpelon and its component
unit. These statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except for
fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the doubfe-counting of internal
activiies.  These slatements distinguish belwesn the governmental and business-type
activities of the City. Governmental activitles generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmenial revenues, and othar nonexchange transactions. Business-type activitias
are financed in whale or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for sach function of the City's gavernmental activities. Direct expenses are those
that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable tc a particular function. Program revenues inciude (a) fees, finas and charges
paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and
coniributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particutar program. Revenuas that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes

and inferest, are presenlsd as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the city's
funds including its fiduciary funds and blended component unit. Separate statements for gach
fund category-governmental, proprietary and fiduciary-are presented. The emphasis of fund
financlal statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds. each displayed in a
separate column, All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and

reported as nenmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operaling revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange
transaclions assaciated with the principal activily of the fund. Exchange transactions ars
those in which each party receives and gives up assentially equal values. Nonoperaling
revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonaxchange transactions

or ancillary activities.
The city reperls the following major govermmental funds:

General Fund. This is the cily's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
of the general government, except those required fo be accounted for in another fund,




CITY OF WAHPETON
Motes o the Féman‘\.ciai Siaiem._e__n‘ts - Continued

Capital improvemenis Fund.  This fund accounts for the accurnulation of funds for various
capital improvements to city properties,

Sales Tax Operaling Fund. This fund accounts for the use of cily sales tax for various
purposes within the city, primarily to make capilal improvements and 1o make economic
development grants and loans.

Sales Tax Resarve Fund, This fund accounts for the use of the clty sales tax set aside for
recreation purposes.

Revolving Loan Fund.  This fund accounts for the use of the money set aside for various
types of economic development loans.

Debt Service Funds. Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of
rescurces for, and the payment of, long-term debt principal, Interest, and related costs.

Capital Projects Funds. Capital projects funds are used fo account for financial resources,
including special assessments, to be used for the acqguisition or construction of major capital
facilities, {other than those financed by proprietary funds and frust funds},

The City reporis the following major enterprise “fund”

Water Operating Fund. This fund accounts for the activities of the Water Department. This
department operates the water distribution system to citizens in the Clly of Wahpeton,

. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide, Proarietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statemenis. The government-
wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reporied using the econamic
resources measurement focus.  The government-wide and propristary fund financial
statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded whan
earmned and expenses are recorded at the time fiabilities are incurred, regardless of when the
related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or
receives) value without directly receiving {or giving} equal value in exchange, include proparty
taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property laxes
is recognized in the fiscal year for which the faxes are levied. Revenue from grants,
entitlements, and donations is recagnized in the fiscal year in which all eligibifity requirerments

have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements.  Governmental funds are reported using the
current financial rescurces measurement focus and the moedified accrual basis of accounting.
Under this methcd, revanues are recognized when measurable and avaliable. The City
considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be avallable If the revenues are
collected within sixty days afier year-end. Special assessments, intergovernmental revenues,
charges for services and investment income are considered susceptible lo acorual
Expanditures are recarded when the related fund liability is incurred, excepl lor principal and
interest on general long-term dabt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which
are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset
acquisitions ere reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of long-term debt
and acguisilions under capital lzases are reported as other financing sources.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds cerlain programs by a combination of
specific cost-reimbursement grants and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses
are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets avallable to finance the
program. it is the City's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources 1o sUGh

programs, and then by general revenues.
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Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are foliowed in oofh govermnmentwide and proprietary fund financial
statements fo the extert that those standards do not confiicl wilh or contradict guidance of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments aiso have the option of following
subsequent privale-sector guidance for their businass-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject fo this same limitation. The government has eiected not to follow subsequent private-

sector guidance.

When both reslricted and unrestricled rasources are avalable for use, itis the cily's policy o
use resfricted resources first, then unrestricied resources as they are neaded,

D. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalenis include amounts in demand deposits and money market
accounts,

investments consist of certificates of deposit, with & malturity date in excess of 90 days, stated
at cost.

E. Inventories

inventories are valued at cost using the first-inffirst-out (FIFO) method.

EM_C_?agE‘EaI Assels

Capital assels include property, plant and equipment.  Capital Assefs are reported n the
governmental activities and business-type activities columns of the government-wide financial
staternents.  Additionally, capital assets and capital asset activity are reported in the
applicable proprietary slatements of nel assets and revenues, expenses and changes in
proprictary net assets. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial,
individual cost of $5,000 or more with useful lives of greater than one fiscal year. Such assets
are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or consiructed. General
Infrastructure assets are reported for that acquired and constructed after July 1, 1980 and are
reported at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value
at the date of donation. The costs of narmal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for
capital assets and improvements are capitalized as infrasiructure projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capilal assets is not capitalized in the

governmental funds.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight line method of the following estimated useful
lives:

Governmental and Business-type Activities: Yeats
Buildings 50
Equipment 15
Office Equipment 3
Vehiclas 3
Infrastructure 10 - 50

G. Compensated Absences

Full-time and permanent parl-time employees are granted vacation henefits at a specified rate
per calendar month of full-ime service.  Other part-ime, hourly, termporary and seasonal
employees are exciuded from earning vacation, Beginning with a new poficy approvad
Navember 15, 2004; full-time employees eam sick leave hencfits at the rate of one working
day per month. Pari-lime and hourly employees do not earn sick leave benefits, Permanent
part-time employees earn sick leave benefits at {he rate of ¥ working day per month.
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Four separaie computations and credit will be ctilized in determining the vacation hours

credited each pay period based on longevity.

Folice Officers and Sergeants:

Years of Service I Maximum Hours Credited
introductary Period 20
40

Six Month Anniversary
15t day of 7th month - 1 year 170

1st day of 2nd year - 3rd year 225
1st dey of 4th year - 5th year 280
1st day of 6th year - 10th year 335
1st day of 20lh year and after 385
Water Plant Personnel:
N Years of Service Maximum Hours Credited
intreductory Periocd 20
Six Month Anniversary 40
1st day of 7th month - 1 year 150
1st day of 2nd year - 3rd year 200
15l day of 4th year - 5th year 250
1st day of 6th year - 19th year 360
1sl day of 20th year and after 360
Other Full-Time City Emplovees:
Years of Service Maximum Hours Credited
Infroductory Period 20
Six Month Anniversary 40
1st day of 7th month - 1 year 50
1st day of 2nd year - 3rd year 100
1st day of 4th year - 5th year 150
1st day of 6th year - 18th year 200
1st day of 20th year and after 250
Permanent Part-Time City Employses;
Years of Service Maximum Hours Credited
Infroductory Pericd 10
Six Month Anniversary 20
1st day of 7th montn — 1 year 50
1st day of 2nd year - 5th year 100
1st day of 6th year and after 150G

it is the library's policy to follow the all other fuli-time City employee policy regarding
compensated absences,

H. Fund Balances

Reserves represent those porlions of fund balances not appropriable for expenditure or
legally seqregated for a specific future use.
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NOTE 2

{EGAL COMPLIANCE - BUDGETS

Budoet Amendmenis - Expenditures:

The city's goveming board approved budget amendments for the major governmental funds
o amend fund budgels to aciual amounts for revenues, expenditures, transfers in and
transfers out.  Below are ihe expenditure, transfer out, revenus and transfer in budget

amendments for the major governmentat funds.

EXPENDITURES/TRANSFERS OUT

Original 1 Amended
» Budget  Amendment Budget

Major Funds: ‘
General Fund - Expenditures $2,478,037 5 {20,024} $2, 458,013
Gieneral Fund - Transfers Out 88,864 57,011 145,875
Capital Improvements 149,400 94,135 240,535
Sales Tax Operating - Expendituies 409,393 33,763 443 156
Sales Tax Operating - Transfers Out 170,000 {9,984} 160,016
Sales Tax Reserve - Expenditures 1,253,221 74,640 1,327,881
Sales Tax Reserve - Transfers Qut 40,000 {40,000} -
Revolving Loan Fund - 210,503 210,503
Debt Service Funds - Expenditures 1,485,517 53,608 1,539,125
Debf Service Funds - Transfers Qut - 5,000 5,000
Capital Projects Funds - Expenditures - 1,250,232 1,250,232
Capital Projects Funds - Transfers Out 525,097 7,182 532,278

REVENUES/TRANSFERS IN
Original Amended

Budget Amendment Budget

Major Funds:

General Fund - Revenues $2,281.467 S 77,384 $2,358,851
General Fund - Transfers In: 285,434 2,703 288 137
Capital Improvements - Revenues 30,000 960 30,860
Capital Improvements - Transfers a] 111,316 52,059 163,375
Sales Tax Operaling 551,893 (2,283} 544,810
Sales Tax Reserve 270,947 40,879 311,826
Revolving Loan Fund 30,000 10,378 40,378
Debt Service Funds - Revenues 835,087 133,667 972,754
Debt Service Funds - Transfers In 542,008 62,287 704,368
Capital Projects Funds - Revenues 501,893 146,823 648,816
Capital Projects Funds - Fin, Source - 1,828,681 1,828,681

Overspent Funds:

[t is noted that the majcr sales lax reserve fund was overspent by 576,144 due to an accounis
payable audit adjustment of $76,144. The fund nudgeted expendiiures were amended o
general ledger aclual amounts. Additionally, several non-majar special revenus funds were
overspert by varying minimal amounts because the expenditure budgets were not amended.

DEPOSITS |

D!QTE 3

In aceordance with North Dakota Stalutes, the cily maintains deposils at the depository barks
daesignated hy the governing board. All depasitories are members of the Federal Reserve

System.
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Daeposits must either be deposited wih the Banlk of North Dakota or in olher financial
instiution situated and doing business within the state. Deposiis, other han with the Bank of
North Dakota, must be fully insured or honded. Deposits, other than with the Bank of MNorth
Dakola, must be fully insured or bonded. In lieu of a bond, 2 financial instiluticn may provide a
pledge of securities equal to 110% of the deposils not covered by insurance of bends.

Authorized collateral includes bills, notes, or bonds issued by the United States government,
its agencies or Instrumentalities, all bonds and notes guaranieed by the United Slates
governmeant, Fedaral land bank bonds, bonds, notes, warranis, certificates of indebtedness,
insured certificates of deposit, shares of investment companies registered under the
nvestment Companies Act of 1840, and il ofher forms of securities issued by the State of
North Dakata, its boards, agencies of instrumentalities or by any county, city, township, school
district, park disirict, or other political subdivision of the stete of North Dakota whether payable
from spacial revenues or supported by the full faith end credit of the issuing body and bonds
issued by an other state of the United States or such other sacurities approved by the banking

board.

At year ended December 31, 2008, the city's carrying amount of deposits was §8,123 842 and
the bank balances were $8259464. Of the hank balances, $850,000 was coversd by
Foderal Depository Insurance.  The remaining bank balances weare collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institutiort’s agent in the government’s name.

Credit Risk:

The city may invest idle funds as authorized In North Dzkote Statutes, as follows:

(a) Bonds, treasury bills and notes, or other securities that are a direct obligation insured or
guaranteed by, the freasury of the Uniled States, or its agencies, instrumentalities, or

organizations created by an act of congress.
(b} Securities sold under agreements 10 repurchase written by a financial institution in which

the underlying securities for the agreement to repurchase are the fype listed above.
(¢} Certificates of Deposit fully insured by the federal deposit insurance corporation.

(d}y Ohbligations of the state.
As of December 31, 2008, the city held certificates of deposit totaling $1,640,000.

Accounts receivable consists of amounts on open account from individuals for goods and
services furnished by the city. No allowance has been astablished for estimated uncollectibie

Utility billings receivable consists of amounis due from citizens on open acceunt for water,
sewer and garbage services furnished by the city. No alfowance has been established for

[NOTE 4:  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE |
accounts receivable.
WOTE 5:  UTILITY BILLINGS RECEIVABLE
astimated uncallactible utiity bilings receivable,
[NOTE 6. TAXES RECEIVABLE

The laxes receivable represents the past four years of detinquent uncoliected taxes. No
allowance has been established for uncollectibie taxes receivable.

The counly treasurer acts as an agent to collect property taxes levied in the county for all
taxing authorities. Any malerial coliections are distributed afler the end of the month.
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Property laxes are levied as of January 1. The properly [axes aftach as an enforceable lien an
property on January 1. The lax levy may be paid in two instailments: the first instalimeant
ncludes one-half of the real estate taxes and all the special assessments; the second
nstaliment is the batance of he real estate taxes. The first installment Is due by March 1 and
ihe second installment is due by October 16, A 5% discount is allowed if all taxes and special
assessments are paid by February 15, After lhe due dales, the bill becomes delinguent and
penalties are assessed.

Most proporty owners choose (o pay property [axes and special assessmenis in a single
payment on or before February 15 and receive the 5% discount on the property taxes.

NOTE 7. SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS RECENVARLE
Special assessments receivable consisls of uncoliected special assessments due the City at
December 31 and uncertified special assessments, which represents a long-term receivable
n the financial siatements. No allowance has been established for uncollectible special
assessmants,
NOTE 8, LOANS RECEIVABLE
Loans receivable consist of loans for the promotion of economic development within the city
through various Wahpeton sales tax and loan funds. The loans recelvable activity for the year
ended December 31, 20068 is as follows;
Beginning Ending
| City Fund: Balance Addjtions | Deductions Balance
Sales Tax Operating Fund $ 699,500 ¥ - $306,328 $383,172
Sales Tax H.E.L.P. Housing 10,208 - 4,051 6,155
Revolving Loan Fund 565,483 893,205 121,880 566,798
Total Loans Receivable 51,305,189 393,205 $432 269 $966,125
NOTE 9. CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for (he year ended December 31,

2008:

Gavernmenial Activities:

Batance Batance
Governmental Activities: 1-1-08 Increases Decreases 12-31-08
Capital assets not being depreciated.
Land $ 4356781 3 - b - $ 435878
Capital assets heing depreciated. .
Buildings $ 2,877,987 | 31,367 811 $ - § 4,245798
Equipment 3,529,320 342,657 99,620 3,772,357
Vehicles 374,942 37,699 21.698 390,943
infrastructure 9,494,031 1,548,868 - 11,042,899
Tolal Capital Assets, Baing Deprecialed 516,275,280 | $3,297,035 121,318 $£19,451,997
Less Accumulated Depresiation for:
Buildings $ 10088931 5 45197 b - 3 1,053,798
Equipment 1,342 445 212715 59,771 1,495,389
Vehicles 24933 34,889 13,018 271,209
infrastructure N 1,540,030 180,881 - 1,729,811
Total Accumnutated Ceprecialion | % 4140412 | § 482,682 372,789 3 4,550,305
Total Capital Assels Being Depreciated, Net | 512,135,868 $2.814 353 548,529 $14,901,692
Governmental Activities-Capital Assolts, Net 512,571,846 ﬁzﬂlﬁfwyﬁl 548,529 515,337 370
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Dspreciation expense was charged fo funclions/programs of the city as follows:

Governmental Activities: Amounts |
General Governmenit $ 34,156
Public Safety 78,038
Fublic Warks 180,667
! nfrastpcture 189,881
Ejg%a! Depreciation Fxpense - Governmental Activities 5482 682
Business-Type Activilies:
Balance Balance
Business-Type Activities: 1-1-08 Increases Decraases 12.31-08
Capital assets heing depreciated.
Buildings $ 2,316,946 5 - ¥ - $ 2,316,846
Equipment 3,906 814 77,691 - 3,987,505
Vehicles 35,319 - - 36,319
Infrastructure 4,417,436 291,885 - 4,709,331
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated $10,680,515 $369,586 5 - $11,050,101
Less Accumiiated Deprectation for:
Buildings $ 843,401 5 46,339 3 - $ 689740
Equipment 2,757,305 137,837 - 2,895,142
Vehicles 21,844 3,594 - 25,538
Infrastruciure 856,458 85,344 - G44 847
Total Accumulated Depreciation 4 4,279,148 $276,119 % - $ 4,555,267
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net | § 6,401,367 F 93,467 3 - % 56,494,834
Component Unit - Library:
Balance Balance
Governmental Activities {Library}: 1-1-08 increases | Decreases | 12-31-08
Capital assels being depreciated:
Buildings 525,000 3 - 3 - 325,000
Equipment 5,982 15,464 - 21,448
Total Capilal Assats, Being Depreciated $30,982 $15,464 3 - 346,446
Less Accumulaled Depreciation for:
Buildings $25,000 % - g - £25,000
Equipment 399 399 - 758
Total Accumulated Depreciation $25,3589 5 399 g - 325,788
Total Capital Assets Being Depraciated, Net 3 5,683 £15,065 $ - $20,648

NOTE 10: TRANSFERS

The following is a reconcilfation between transfers in and trensfers out as reported in the basic
financial statements for the vear ended December 31, 2008

Fund Transfers in Transfers Out
Major Funds:

General Fund $ 288137 3 145875
Sales Tax Operaling Fund - 160,016
Capila! Improvemenis 163,375 -
Debt Service Funds 549,206 5,000
Capital Projects Funds - 502 786
Water Enterprise Funds - 112,000
Non-Major Fund:

Special Revenue Funds ; 257,208 337,249
Totel Transfers 3 1,352,826 $1,352,926
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Transfers are used to 1) move unresfricted general fund revenaes lo finance various
programs, 2) move sales tax revenues o fund programs and projaects and 3) move revenues
from the fund with collection authorization fo the debt service fund as debt service principal
and interest payments becomae due.

DEFERRED REVENUE |

NOTE 11
Deferred revenue in the governmental fund modified accrual basis financial staternents as of
Decamber 34, 2008 for the city consisted of the following:
De!irﬁ!éni property taxes receivabie (generat fund) 5 89,812 ;
Definquent special assessments receivable (debt service funds) 205,035
Delingueni property taxes receivable {(non-major funds) 97,875
Total Deferred Revenue §3g2,722
NOTE 12: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

During lhe year ended December 31, 2008, the following changes occurred in fong-term
Habilities of the city:

PRIMARY COVERNMENT
Governmental Activities:
Balance Balance Due Within
Governmental Activities: 1-1-08 increases Decreases 12-31-08 One Year
Special Assessment Bonds 510,285,000 1 $1,850,600 | § 976,000 $11,185,000 51,000,000
Loans Payable 113,853 - 113,853 - -
{.eases Payahle 142782 127,109 54,422 215,469 51,977
Compensaled Absences * 106,288 8,324 - 114,622 -
Total Governmental Activities $40,647,933 1 $1,985433 $1.138,275 | 11,495,000 $1.051,977
Business-Type Activities (Propriefary Funds):
Balance Balanee Due Within |
Business-Type Activities: 1-1-08 increases | Decreases 12-31-08 Cne Year
Revenue Bonds $2.638,366 5 - 3178,000 $2,460,366 $180,000
Compensated Ahsences * 21,793 1,930 - 23,723 -
Total Business-Type Activities | $2,660,159 51,930 $178,000 | $2,484,089 $180,000

*. The change in compensated absences is shown as a net change because changes In
salary prohibit exact calculations of additions and reductions at a reasenable cost.

Special Assessment Debl:

The city has issued special assessment bonds to provide funds for the cost of various
improvement districts within the city. Special assessments on benefited property are used o
pay for the cost of these improvements. The city is required to levy a special assessment
deficiency tax, in the event that collections of special assessments and other revenues are
insufficient for the repayment of the bonds.
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Long-term debt of the governmental activities
following individual ssues:

Special Assessment Bonds:

$550,000 200638 Refunding improvement Bonds #10003, due n ona
annual instaliment of $30,000 in 2009; inferest at 2.4%.

$2.375.000 19998 Refunding Improvement Serjal Bonds #8698, due in
annual Instaiments of $155,000 to §160,000 through 2014, interest at
4.45% to 4.85%.

$510,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds #3800, due in an annual
instaliment of $10.000 to $85,000 through 2016, with interest at 4.95%

to 5.35%.

$2 050,000 20030 Refunding improvement Bonds #10303, due in
annual installments of $135,000 to $140,000 through 2018, with interest

at 3.0% to 4.0%.

$1,760,000 2003 Refunding Improvement Bonds #9902, due in annual
stallments of $120,000 through 2017, with interest af 3.25% to 4.25%.

$2.000.000 2005 Refunding improvement Bonds, due in annual
nstailments of $140,000 to $170,000 through 2020, with interest at

3.75% to 4.0%.

$1,180,000 1995 Refunding Improvement Bonds #9395, due in annual
instaliments of $70.000 through 2011, with inferast at 5.3% to 5.5%.

$1,600,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 1997, due in annual
installments of $80,000 to $125,000 through 2017, with interest at 5.0%

to 5.125%.

£970,000 2008 Refunding improvement Bonds #10506, due in annual
installments of $55.000 to $70,000 through 2021, with interest at 4.0%.

$1 850,000 2007 Refunding Improvement Bonds #10607, due in annuat
ataliments of $95,000 to $165,000 through 2022, with interest at 3.5%
t0 4.375%.

$1,850,000 2008 Refunding Improvement Bonds #10708, dus in annual
instaliments of $70,000 to $195,000 through 2020, with interest &t 4 0%
to 4.5%.

Total Special Assessment Bonds

at December 31, 2008, is comprised of the

$ 30,000

835,000

375,000

1,500,000

1,080,000

1,665,000

210,000

910,000

855,000

1,755,000
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Gnversmaontal activilies debt service reguirements to maturity {excluding compensaied

shsences and leases payabla) at December 31, 20408 are as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Year Ending Special Assessment Bonds |
_Pecember 31 Principal Intsrest
2009 5 1,000,600 § 445,894
2010 1,045,000 404,865
2011 1,065,000 381,524
2012 1,600,000 318,915
2013 1,015,000 277,008
2014-2018 4,380,000 782,394
 2018-2021 1,660,000 100,369
________ Tatals $11,165,000 $2,680,970 |

Proprietary Funds — Revenue Bonds:

The city issues bonds where the city pledges income derived from Ihe operations to pay debt
service. The proceeds of the bonds are used to finance various capital improvermnent projects.
The Refunding Revenue Bonds are special obligations of the city payable solely from, and
secured as fo payment of principal and interest by a plecge of, the receipts from revenues of

the water, sewer and garbage uility systems.

The general taxing power of the city is not pledged to the payment of these bonds cither as to
principal or interest. The bonds do not constitute a general obligation of the cily, nor will thay
exceed the debt limit of the city within the meaning of any constitutional, statutory or charter

provision, limitation or restriclion.

Enterprise Revenue Bonds — Set Payment Schedulas:

£520,000 of 1999 Revenue Bonds with the North Dakota Municipal
Bond Bank State Revolving Fund; due in annual installments of $20,000
through 2018, with interest at 2.5%.

£1,0662,366 of 1993 Revenue Bonds, due in annual installments of
$55.000 to $62,368 through 2014, with interest at 2.5%.

$1,890,000 of 2003 Revenue Bonds with the North Dakota Municipal
Bond Bank State Revolving Fund Program. Due in annual instatiments
of $80,000 to $126,000 thicugh 2023, with interest at 2.5%.,

$374,065 of 2003 Revenue Bonds with the North Dakota Municipal
Dond Bank State Revolving Fund Program. Due in annual nstallments
of $15,000 to $25,000 through 2023, with interest at 2.5%.

Total Enterprise Revenue Bonds

$ 200,000

357,366

1,603,000

(@8]
[We]
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follows:
L BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Year Ending Revenue Bonds Payable
December 31 Principal Interest
2009 3 180,000 $ 61,509

2010 187,000 57,009

2011 194,000 52,334

2012 196,000 47 485

2013 199,000 42 584
2014-2018 792,366 145,909
2020-2023 712,000 54 450
Totals 32,460,366 $461,280

NOTE 13:

CDBG LOAN PAYABLE |

The City has obiained Community Development Block Grant (CBDG) Loans to provide
financial assistance to private-sector eniities for the acquisition and construction of industrial
and commercial faciliies deemed to be in the public interest. The grants are secured by
property financed and are payable solely from the paymenis received on the underlying
mortgage grants. Upon repayment of the grants, cwnership of the acquired faciities transfers
to the private-sector entity served by the grant.

As of December 31, 2008, there was a CDBG loan outstanding, with an aggregate principal
amount payable of $69,200. The City receives reimbursement for payments made on this

loan payable.

NOTE 14

GRANT MATCH PAYABLE |

The City has contingent grant match payables reported in the sales tax operating (320} and
sales tax contingency (321) funds. The $150,000 match in fund 320 is recorded as an
accruad liability per Council action 8/5/7 as requesied by the ND Dept. of Commerce in
reference to bonus payments for consuiting contracts for the marketing of the former Imation
buildings. The $159,500 grant reserves in fund 321 are related to ND DOT Traffic
Enhancement grant matches and Safe Routes fo Schools sidewalk improvement grant

maiches.

NOTE 14:

CONDUIT DEBT

Industrial Development Revenue Bonds:

From time to time, the city has issued Industrial Revenus Bonds to provide fnancial
assistance o private sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and
commarcial facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the
property financed and are payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage
loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acduired facilities fransfers lo the
nrivate-seclor entity served by the bond issuance. Neither the city, the state, nor any political
subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the
bonds are not reported as labilties in the accompanying financial statements,
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| NOTE 16

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Cily of Wahpeton is exposed to various risks of loss refated to torts: theft of, damage 1o,
and destruction of assels; errors and omissions; injuries to employeas, and nalural disasters.

in 1986, state agencies and political subdivisions of the State of North Dakota joined together
to form the North Dakota Insurance Reserve Fund (NDIRF), & public entity risk pool currently
operating as a common risk management and Nsurance program for the siate and over 2,000
political subdivisions. The City pays an annual premium to NDIRF for its general Hability, auto,
and public assets insurance coverage. The coverage by NDIRF is limited 1o losses of two
million doflars per oocurrence for general liability, one milion dollars per ocourrence for
automobile coverage and up to $2,261,231 for public assets (mobile equipment and portable

property} coverage,

The Cily of Wahpeton also parlicipates in the Norih Dakota Fire and Tornado Fund and the
State Bonding Fund. The city pays an annual premium to the Fire and Tormado Fund to cover
property damage to buildings and personal property. Replacement cost coverage is provided
by estimating replacement cost in consultation with the Fire and Tornado Fund. The Fire and
Tornade Fund is reinsured by a third parly insurance carrier for losses In excess of one million
dollars per ocourrence during a 12-month period. The State Bonding Fund currenily provides
political subdivisions with blanket fidelity borid coverage in the amount of $2,000,000 for the
city employees.  The State Bonding Fund does not currently charge any premium for this

coverage.
The city has workers compensation wiih the North Dakota Workforce Safety and Insurance.
The cily provides employees with health insurance. Contributions to the insurance plan are
hased on years of employment with the city.

Setiled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the
past three fiscal years,

| NOTEAT:

PENSION PLAN |

Defined Contribution Plan

The City of Wahpeton participates in an IRS 457 deferred compensalion plan.  Each
employee has the option to join and any participant may withdraw from the retrement 457
plan anytime upon 30 days nolice in writing. Each permanent employee is eligible to

contribute te the refirement plan.

The city only provides a matching contribution to the 457 plan for existing employees that did
not elect o participate in the defined contribution plan al the time of conversion on January 1,
2005. The city had three employees near retirement that chose not to participate in the
defined benefit plan, the city's required contributions for the years ended Decemnber 31, 2008,

2007 and 2006, were 31,989, $1,563, and 51,487, respectively.

Deafined Benefit Plan

As of January 1, 2005, the City of Wahpeton contributes (o the North Dakote Public
Employees’ Retirement System (NDPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by the State of North Dakola. NDPERS provides for retirement,
disability and survivor benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Eligible mendatory
employees hired on or after January 1st, 2005 are required to participate in NDPERS. Benefi
and contribution provisions are administered in accordance with chapter 54-52 of the North
Dakola Century Code. NDPERS issues a publicly avallable financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for NDPERS. That report may
be obtained by wrillhg lo NDPERS, 400 E Broadway, Suite 505, PO Box 1214, Bismarck,
North Dakota, 58502-1214.




CITY OF WAHPETON

Notes to the

Financlal Statements - Continued

Plan members are required to coniribute 3% of their annual covered salary. The city is
required to contribute 5.12% which the city chooses i increase lo 7.12% to reduce the
employee centribution from 4% to 2% of the employee’s salary. The employer contribution
consists of 5.12% for employee retirement and 1% for the retiree health benefits fund. The
contribution requirements of pian members and the city are established and may be amended
by the State legisiature. The city's contributions to NDPERS for the year ending December 31,

2008, 2007 and 2006 were $69,136, §88,124, and £68,522, respectively, egual to the required
confributions for the year,

NCTE 18: FUND DEFICITS |
The following funds were in a deficit position at December 31, 2008:
Balange
Vector Control % {85}
5-1-87 Flood Phase | {300,566}
1-1-04 Rosewood [l {43,573)
Dakota Avenue Reconstruction 2008 {13,068}
11th Street Shared Use Path {6B,529)
Dakota Avenus Side Sireets {16,345}
Southside Storm Sewer (14,488}
Total ${455 054}
The city wili relieve the deficits in the construction funds with fulure special assessment
coliections. The remaining fund deficits will be relieved with future tax collections, fransfers,
debt issuances andfor fees collected.
NOTE 19 PRIOR FERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

The beginning net assets and fund balances at January 1, 2008 were missing grant match
payable that existed at December 31, 2007. Additionally, a small portion of special
assessment bonds payable that were reported in ihe enterprise funds were entirely paid by
governmental funds and reclassified to governmental activities.  The adjustments are as

follows:

Governmential Activifies

Net Assets Equity as previously reported 514,843,299
Adjustments to restate the January 1, 2008 net
assets equity for missed capital assets:

Grant Match Payable {150,000)
CDBG Loan Fayable (81,2C0)
Special Assessment Bonds Payable {13,371)
Net Assets Equity January 1, 2008 as restated $14,598,728
Governmental Activities
Fund Balances as previously reported $8,686,231
Adjustments to restate the January 1, 2008
fund balances as noted below:
Grant Match Payable (150,000}
~ CDBG Lean Payable T (81,200}
Fund Balances January 1, 2008 as restated 38,455,031 }




CITY OF WAHPETON

Noles to the Financial Statements - Continued

—

Entarprise

Met Assets Equity zas"pr:mevéo{,fsfy reporied

Adjustments to restate the January 1, 2008 net

assets equity for missed capital assets:
Special Assessment Bonds Payable

54,862,084

13,371

Net Assets Equity January 1, 2008 as restated

$43875,455

NOTE 20: CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS !

The City of Wahpeten had the lollowing open construction contracts on various projects with
balances owing at December 31, 2008:

Contract Total Remaining
N Project Contractor Amouni | Completed Balance
Phase [ Interceptor Sewer GEQ E. Haggert $161,801 b - $161,801
Phase I} 16th Ave, & 2108 {nterstate Engineering 15,990 13,479 2,511
Phase 11l 17th Ave. & Commerce | interstate Engineering | 71,159 51,681 19,518
Total $248,980 $65,160 $183,830
2008 Coniract Total Remaining
Project Contractor Amount Completed Balance
Armory Renovations Comsiock Consiruction | § 839462 | § 785516 | § 83,946
Armory Renpvations (CDBG) Comstock Construction 13,690 12,321 1,368
Armory Parking Lot Mark Sand & Gravel 127,831 51,687 76,144
Alrport Drainage Project Comstock Construction 558,455 212,865 345,550
11th St. Shared Use Path Mark Sand & Gravel 204 577 174,376 120,201
South Side Crainage Basin Interstale Engineering 39,234 14,373 24,862
Dakola Ave. Side Sireels Interstate Enginesring 88,098 16,345 81,751
 Tofal $1,971,345 | $1,237,483 $733,863

[NOTE 21: BUDGET TO ACTUAL RECONCILIATION]
A lease issued in 2008 paid by fund 229 {Capital Improvements) is not included in the
budgetary comparison schedule but is included in the combined statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund batences. The reconciliation is provided below.
| I Combined Budget to Actual
Capital Improvementis r Statement Adjustment Statement
Expenditures 5367,644 $(127,109) 240,535
Lease Proceeds 127,108 (127,109) -
NOTE 22: SUBSEQUENT EVENT - FLOODING}

The city and surrounding communities were Impactad by spring flcoding. As a result the city
incurred costs to fight the flood and will continue to incur costs for heme buy ouls and for
protection. The financial impact to the couniy should be minimal as the counly expects to be
reimbursed primarily by federal and state funds,
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CITY OF WAHPETON

Wahpeton, North Dakota

BUDGETARY COMPARISCN SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Endaed December 31, 2008

Revenues;

Taxes

Licenses, permits and fees
Fines and forfeits
Intergovernmeantal
Chargas for services
inierast income
Miscellaneous incoms

Total Ravenues

Expenditures,

Current:

General government
Public safety

Public works

Culture and recreation
Other

Total Expenditures

Excess {(Deficiency) of Revanues

QOver Expenditures

Cther Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers in
Transfers cut

Tolal Gther Financing Sources and Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
$ 656,121 § 718840 § 719840 & -
447,327 485,128 476,858 (8,468)
189,000 160,330 144,568 {15,762)
790,546 875,684 891,279 15,595
2,300 11,015 11,015 -
196,000 79,168 78,168 -
26,173 27,688 27,378 {310)
$ 2281467 3 2358.8561 & 2,3490806 % (8,945)
§ 542,084 495844 § 484233 § 11,711
1,338,038 1,323,600 1,279,252 44,348
489,521 498,088 498,068 -
G2,484 132,185 132,185
15,000 8,218 8,216 -
$ 2478037 § 2458013 § 2401954 § 56,059
¥ (198,570) § (99,162) § (52,048} § 47,114
$ 285434 & 288137 § 288,137 3§ -
{88,864) (145,875) (145,875} -
5 196,870 5 142262 % 142,262 % -
P - 5 43100 § 80,214 % 47,114
§ 470,257 § 470,257 § 470257 § -
$ 470,257 § 513,357 § 560471 % 47,114

The accompanying required supplementary information notes are an integrai part of this schedule.
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CITY CF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, Nerth Dakota

aUDGETARY COMPARISCON SCHEDULE
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Inferest income
Miscellaneous income

Tolal Revenues

Expendifures:
Current:

General Government
Public Safety

Public Works

Debi Service:
Principal

Interest and Feas

Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actuat Final Budgst

% - 5 9789 % 5,789 % -
30,000 19,168 19,168 -

- 2,003 2,003 -

5 30000 § 30080 § 30950 § -

30,000 3 5115 & 5115 & -

28,000 36,535 36,538 -
24,000 137,957 137,957 -
87,400 54,422 54,427 -

- 6,508 6,506 -

148400 § 240535 § 240,535 $ -

3

$ (119400) § (209,575) § (208,575} $ .

Olher Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers in

Net Changs fin Fund Balances § (8084) § (46,200) § (46,200)
Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - Decamber 31

$ 411,316 $§ 163375 § 163,375 3 -

&R
3

$ 769,056 § 7690505 § 769,996 § -

761,812 § 723796 % /23796 % -

2

The accempanying required supplementary information notes are an integral part of this schedule.




CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

BUDSETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

SALES TAX OPERATING FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Ravenues:

Sales taxes

Interest income
Miscellaneous income

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Economic Developmeant

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expendiiures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers out

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Belance - January 1
Prior Peried Adjustment

Fund Balance - January 1, as restated

Fund Balance - December 31

Criginal Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actuai Final Budget

$ 501,893 § 527,818 & 532650 3% 4,832
50,000 13,822 13,824 -

- 7,970 7,970 -

$ 551,893 § 540,610 § 554442 § 4832
§ 409393 § 443156 & 443156 & -
3 142500 $ 106454 5 111286 % 4 832
$ (170,000) § (160,016) § (160,0186) § -
5 (27,500) & (53,562) § (48,730} § 4 832
$ 1,493,556 § 1,493,556 §$ 1,493,556 & -
{150,000) {150,000} {150,000) -

3 1,343,558 § 1,343,556 3 1343556 & -
$ 1,216,056 § 1,239,994 5 1204826 § 4,832

The accompanying required supplementary information noles are an integral part of this schedule.
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CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SALES TAX RESERVE FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Sales faxes $ 250,947 % 263,808 % 266,325 % 2,418
Intergovernmental - 11,350 11,350 -
Inlerest income 20,000 31,789 31,7889 -
Miscsllanepus income - L7777 4777 -
Total Revenues $ 270,847 3 311,825 5§ 314,241 3 2,418
Expenditures:
Current:
Capital Outlay § 1253221 $ 1,327.861 5 1404004 § (76,143)
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures $ {(982274) § (1,016,036) § (1,089.783) § (73.727)
Other Financing Sources (Useg).
Transfers oui [ (40,000) & - § - 3 -
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (1,022,274) § {1,016,036) § (1,089,783) § (73,727}
Fund Balance - January 1 g 1217857 % 1217857 § 1217857 §
Fund Balance - Decembar 31 $ 1956583 § 201821 § 128,094 &  {73,727)

The accompanying required supplementary information notes are an integral part of this schedule.




CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

REVOLVING LOAN FUND
For the Year Ended Decamber 31, 2608

Variance with

Original Final

Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues,
Loan receivahle receipls 3 - % 9245 % 9245 5 -
Interest income 30,000 29,864 29,864 -
Miscellaneous income - 1,269 1,268 -
Tolal Revenues 3 30,0600 % 40,378 3 40,378 § -
Expenditures:
Current:
Economic Devejopmeant 3 - § 210503 § 123,111 § 87382
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expendiures 3 30000 % (170,125) § (82,733) § 87392
Cther Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in $ - % - % - 5 -
Net Change in Fund Balances 3 30,000 & {170125) % (82,733) § 87,392
Fund Balance - January 1 $ 1365110 § 1,365110 § 1,265,110 3§ -
Prior Period Adjustment {81,200) {81,200) {81,200) -
Fund Balance - January 1, as restated § 1282910 $ 1283910 § 1,283,910 § -
Fund Balance - December 31 $ 1,313,910 % 1113785 % 1201177 § 87,382

The accompanying reguired supplementary information notes are an integral part of this schedule.




CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Daketa

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
December 31, 2008

| NOTE 1:

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY |

Budgetary Information;

The governing board adopts an annual budget on a basis consistent with GAAP for the
general fund, each special revenue fund and each debt service fund of the municipality. The
city s required to present the adopted and final amended revenues and expenditures for

sach of these funds.

The fallowing procedurés arg followad in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statemenis:

-

Gn or before September 10th of the preceding fiscal year, the city prepares a preliminary
budget for the next succeeding year beginning January 1st. The preliminary budget
includes a detallad breakdown of the estimated revenues and appropriations.

The governing board holds a publfic hearing where any taxpayer may testify in favor or
against any proposed disbursements or tax levies requestad in the preliminary budget.
After the budget hearing and on or before Octeber 1st, the board adopls the final budget.

The final budget must be filed with the county auditor oy October 10th.
No disbursement shall be made or liability incurred in excess of the total appropriation by
fund. However, the governing board may amend the budgst during the year for any

revenue and appropriations not anticipated at the time the budget was prepared. The
budget amendmerts must be approved by the board and the approval must be noted in

the proceedings of the board,

All annual appropriations lapse at year-end.
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CITY OF WAHPETON
: 1, Marih Daknia

SOHEDULE OF FUND ACTIVIEY
CLIENT BASIS
For lhe Year Ended December 20, 2008

Ganeral Fund

Capital Improvemsnis
Sales Tax Opsrating Fund
Sales Tox Reserve
Revolving Lean Fund

Totad Majer Funds

hNonmajor Funds;
Spacial Reyenue ']
Armory Operating
Adverising
Adrparl

Planning Gommission

Bard Levy

Social Security Levy

Retirement Levy

Frnployes Safety Commiiitee

Fire Departiment Lavy

Assistance to Firefighters Grant
Raal Estate Levy

Special Street Manlenance
SrowiFlood Ememency

Leves Mainlenance

City Share of Spavials

Ambuience Levy

Unemployment Reserve

Economic Development
Profassional Development Fund
Miscellanecus Fund

Vector Control

1% Additicnal Lodging Tax 1-1-08
Job Development Levy

Weed Mainienance Levy

Lodging Tax

Sales Tax Default Reserve

Sales Tax Development Reserve
Sales Tax Mini-Match Reserve
Sales Tex Help Fund

one

Handicapped Farking Fines
Employee Bonus/Retirement
Gasoling, O#, Elc.

Lacal Law Enforcement Block Grant
Police Dept. Radio Sinking Fund
Police Dept. Canine Unit Fund
Community Policing Fund

Golf Club Donatlons

Ciubhouse Maintenanos

Sidewalk Mainlenance

Downtown Cleanup Fund
Downtown Development Process
Comr. Emergency Response (CERT)
Chrisbmas Decorating Fund

Total 8perial Revemie Funds

Debt Service Funds:

Special Assassment Deficiency
Tax Increment Fund

City Hall Buiiding Sinking Fund
R 9382 Sinking Fund

R 9596 Sinking Fund

21 9698 Sinking Fund

R/ 8300 Siniking Fund

R/ 5902 Sinking Fund

Halance Transiers Dkt Transfars Salance
1.1-08 Revenue In Proceets ut Expendiures 12-31-08
B 39761300 & 735885067 8  298.13580 T 4 4587604 5 245804243 § 37061370
g 769,99508 § AResnI3 5 153,37A04 % & - 5 24053468 §  723.706.57
1,222,361.58 549,609,906 - 160,016.13 443,155.55 1,238,780.86
1,192,258 55 311,875.29 - - 1,327.,860.95 176,223.89
. hanaces? 40,377,953 - 240,502.63 1.201,177.89
5 4953,43346 5 320162400 § 45151184 5 T a05.80117 & 468008622 § 3.710,61191
3 4501231 3 - & - 3 - 3 - $ 863656 3727575
20,971.3 28.4G8.83 - - 21,050,848 28,320 34
308792 55,338.12 - - - 54,615.28 3,790.48
33,512.73 35.167.70 - - 30,939.35 37,741.08
267.67 2.654.21 - - - 3,921,868
19,315.82 BE,832.43 . 87.208.27 g5.00 18.853.98
48,667.082 38,24 1.44 14,200.00 71,654,186 - 29,455.10
7,758.59 479.80 - - 1,168.00 7.051.49
118,888.12 153,628.01 - 24,606.00 70,705.82 17728131
- 165,546,368 - - 187, 117.62 8,428.74
184,213.01 51.607.19 14,884.57 141 512,15 2.483,08 t06,809.56
129,648.15 88,167.45 - - 176,010.83 41,794.77
3884771 13,674.88 - - 37 78817 14,656.42
- - 60:,507.78 - 50,607.79 -
31.222.80 7676192 - - 58,517.05 48,487 .77
5,318.87 a7 62415 - - 24,899,968 7.945.08
42,680.18 166.25 - - 1,243.01 41,603.42
- 353.20 160,016.13 - 180,369.33 -
BO7.68 - - - - a807.68
113.55 3470.80 - - 3.471.06 113.29
308.23 1,040.49 - - - 1431.48 (B4.74)
- 12,478.07 - - 3,633.00 884507
147,221.56 27,074.25 - - 2,083 34 15221247
33,408.31 36,082.11 - 12,105.37 9,504.43 47,481.62
2103591 33,566.84 - - 16,238.40 38,393.45
108,555.48 - - - - 108,555.48
485,200.00 - - - - 495,200.00
25,993.28 - - - 6,735.45 19,257.83
347,144.54 15,242 25 - - 1,363 40 361,023.39
13,760.47 213.88 - - - 13,874.3G
. 510.00 - B 510.00 -
38,60%.47 - - - 32814 38,273.33
B.980.08 . - - 3.776.12 3.212.986
5.15 - - - - 5.156
10,000.00 - 2,500.00 - - 12,500.00
B8,706.50 142.27 - - 1,318.06 7530.71
1,410.35 16.04 - 85.82 134077
- 1,750.00 - 4,750.00 -
2359843 28.040.39 . - - 50,215.50 222232
30,428.71 - - - 3.682.65 26,747.06
11.962.15 - - - - 11,962.15
13.483.08 - - - - - 13,482.08
1,454.28 2.615.75 - - - 2,748 C6 1,321.87
168.00 - - 169.00 - -
T 205066240 5 101967528 % 25220849 § § 33724895 § 100652268 § 1.978,77455
§ 150,78253 § 100408 % - 3 - - E - 5 60,787.07
. BE,E34.40 - 5,000.00 - 83,534.40
2,606.16 - 116,927 .58 - 119,533.74 -
143,332.50 71.252.70 - - BB.865.00 125,825.60
204 545 96 117,298 56 . - 128.418.76 283,525,756
4,338.57 34.852.65 182, 834.01 - - 207,702.50 14,322.13
- 75,860.00 44 85582

53,383.91
208.682.44

£87,431.91
109,804.05

1684,228.00

294.548.49

Contlnued on Next Page......




CITY GF WAM

whighpainn, Narlh Daketa

CLENT BASIS
For tha Year Bnded Decembear 31, 2008

Balance Transfers Dbt Transfers Balance
1-1-06 Revemie [ Praceads au Expandiiures 12-31-08

CONTINUED:
Deb! Senvice Fungs {Gontinued]:
R/ 40003 Sinking Fund k3 13260087 § 165118 § - % - & - 8 55,060.80 & T7,182.55
1 10303 Sinking Fund A44,280.14 Z1403,387.81 . - - 206,256.00 148,381.08
R/ 10405 Sinking Fund 184,188.00} - 178,262.50 - - 178,262,850 184,188.00
R/ 10508 Sinking Fund 71,260.72 e, 78052 - - - 106,728.00 F4,329.24
RA 0BT Sinking Fund 154,000.04 - 164.000.00 - 182, .80 165,442.10
RA 0708 Sinking Fund - 1,823.39 7,182,658 - - - 9,105.47
Total Debt Service Funds L 196321166 § 85404035 § 84820617 % - & A00000 5§ 1.48h,22250 § 1U66,235.48
Capitat Profscts Funds:
1/2 Bales Tex Fund 3 45818680 % a27.Bi81t - 5 - % AGR.604.30 % - 5 410,4C00.87
5-1-97 Ffand Phass { 133,672.68 5,800,050 - - - 440,438.75 {300,966.07)
1-1-04 Rasewood {43,673.05) - - - - - {43.573.05)
Phase | Interceptor Sewer {187,420.15) - - 161 425.68 - 400553 -
Fh il 150 Ava. & 2108 ntersection {212,640.78) - - 29797473 - 5,333.85 -
Ph i 19th 5L & 16th Ave, {14,191.00) - - 558,539.414 7,182.08 537,166.33 -
Ph 1 17t Ave, Wastside Dav. (#36,317.05] - - 260.741.01 - 24,423 98 -
Dalkota Ave. Recenstruction 2008 {12.688.70) - - - - 37950 {13,068.20)
11th Street Shared Use Palh - 141,122 89 B - - 207,651,558 {66,528.69)
Dakota Avenue Sde Sireets - B - 18,345.15 {16,345.15}
Soutside Stom Sewer - - - - - 14,487 50 {14,487.50}
Tolal Capital Projects Funds bl (704,97%.25) § 67474100 § - § 182868083 $ 59278638 §  1,250,23222 % {44,568.02)
Tolal Monmajor Funds $ 3.308,90281 § 254845664 5 00143468 F 187868083 $ 53503533 § 375197780 § 360044581
Tatal Governmenial Activities 5 826203627 % 584008084 § 1,552,926.50 3 182868063 % 124092650 5 843204462 § 761165374
Melgr Entgrprise Funds:
Water Operaling 3 713,81233 5 G060,18471 § - 3 - $ 11200000 § 594,012.30 5  667,984.74
Meter Depasits 5,258.75 - - - - 946.98 4.312.77
Tolal Water Operaling - Major $ 719,072.08 § 960,18471 % - 5 - % 11200000 % 89405028 F  BY2.297.51
Sawer Operaiing § 23713363 $§ 44564792 § - b - 5 - ¥ 41550841 8 267,253.C4
Nonmaior Enlerprse Funds:
Wasle Removal 1 5144763 5 225606.87 % - 3 - 5 - 5 224,368.78 § 52,685.77
Wasle Reduclion 75,004.51 15,198.88 - - - 14,825.79 75,376.60
Total Wasle Fund b 126,452.14 & 24DB0580 & - $ - $ - 3 73318557 & 128,062.37
Vecior Controf § 6360852 % 4341219 § - § - 3 - 3 41,362,683 § §5,957.88
Sweat Lights 3 3,829.78 § 05,487.34 § - % - $ - g §3,166.45 § 11,260.67
Tolal Monmajor Enlerprise Funds 3 198,28044 §  379.705.33 § - § - 3 - 3 A7372485 § 20527092
Tolzl Enterprise Funds 5 1,455406.05 § 1785537868 3§ - 3 - § 11200000 § 1684212854 § 1,144,821.47
Talal Primary Govenmnent 5 041783232 § 762581860 § 1,352,026.50 § 182368083 § 135292650 % 10,116,2506.66. 3§ 8,755.875.19
Component Unil:
Library § 55262727 § 725,18833 S - 5 -5 - % 20750318 § 7324741
Totat Reparting Enlity $ 947309450 § 7.050806.03 § 135292650 1 1.823.650.83 5 1352876550 % 10323458756 % BAB1Z2.60




CITY OF WAHRFETON
Wahpelon, North Dakota

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Far the Year Ended Dacember 31, 2008

Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-Through
FPass-Through Grantor! CFDA Grantor's
Program Title Number Number Experyditures
1.8, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:
Passed throuah the State Department of Transportalion:
Highway Planning and Construction 20,205 None 3 t4af123
Alcohol Impaired Driving Counlermeasures Incentive Grants 20.801 None 5,000
Total U.S. Department of Transportation $ 145,123
LS. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT:
Passed through the State Division of Community Services:
Community Development Biock Grants / Entitlement Grants 14.228 2326-C007-5L08-ED § 223,138
Community Development Block Grants 7 Entilement Grants 14,228 2216-CDOG7-PF 11,135
Community Develnpment Block Grants / Entitlsment Grants 14.228 2343-CDO8BSL-ED 3,000
Tatal U.S. Depariment of Housing and Urban Development $ 237,273
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:
Passed through the State Division of Emergency Management:
Assistance to Fireflghter's Grant 97.044 None $ 186,020
Law Enforcement Terrorism Prevention Program 97.074 None 8,254
Total Department of Homeland Security % 104,314

Total Expenditures of Federai Awards

NOTES: BASIS OF PRESENTATION

¥ 5TTT0

The Schedule of Expenditures of Fedaral Awards represents amounts expended from Federal Programs during the
year ended Decamber 31, 2008 as determined based on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The amounts
reported on the schedule have been recenciled fo and are in material agreement with amounts recorded in the
accounting records from which the financial statements have been reported.
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STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

OFFICE OF THE STATE AUDITOR
400 E. BOULEVARD AVENUE - DEPT. 117
BISMAREGK, MD 58505

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANGE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

City Councll
City of Wahpeton
Wahpeton, North Dakota

We have audited the financial statements of the govermnmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund Information of
the City of Wahpeton, North Dakota as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008, which collectively
comprise the Cily’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated September 14,
2009. Wa conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Complraller Geaneral of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered City of Wahpeton's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of gxpressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing en opinion on the effectiveness of the City
of Wahpeton's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an gpinion on the
affectivenass of the City of Wahpeton's internal controt over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not alfow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control
deficiencies, that adversely affects e City's abllity to initiate, authorize, record, process, of report
financial data reliahly in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there s more
than a remote fikelihood that a misstatement of the City's financial statements that is mare than
inconsequantial will not be prevented or detected by the City's internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or cambination of significant deficiencies, that resulls in
more than a remote likelihood that & material misstatement of the financial statements will not be

prevenied or detected by the City's internal control.

Our consideration of internal controf over financlal reporting was for the Emited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and wolld not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be significant deficiencies or malerial weaknesses.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As pari of ohiaining reasonable assurance aboul whether the Gity of Wahpeton's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compiiance with certaln provisions of faws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, nencompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opirion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The resuiis of aur tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that is required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City Council, others within
the City, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone olher than these specified parties.

Robert R. Peierson
State Auditor

September 14, 2009
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

City Council
City of Wahpeton
Wahpaton, North Dakota

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Chiy of Wahpeton, Narth Dakota, with the types of compiiance
requirements descibed in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Complfanca
Supplement that are applicable to fis major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2008, The Cily's
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's resuits section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questicned cests, Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its major federal programs is the respensibility of the City of Wahpeton, North Dakota's managemant.
Our responsibility is to express an opinicn on the City of Wahpeton, North Dakola's compliance hased on our

audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards appiicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptrofler Gensral of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Qrganizations, Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtaln reasonable assurance about whather noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirernents referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Wahpeton, North Dakota's compliance
with those requirements and parforming such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We befieve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Cur audit does not provide a legal

determinalion on the City of Wahpeton, North Dakota’s compliance with those requirements.

nian, City of Wahpeton, North Dakota, compiied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred

In our opi
federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2008,

to ahove that are applicable to its major

Internal Control Qver Compliance

The management of the City of Wahpsaton, North Dakota, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effactive
internal controf over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, coniracts, and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Wahpeton, North Dakofa's intemal
control aver compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and materlal effect on a major federal
program in order fo determine our audiling procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance,
but not for the purpose of axpressing an opinicn on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly. we do not express an opinion on the effectivenass of the Gity's internal contrel over compliance.

A control deficiency in the City of Wahpetor's intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation
of u contiol does nol alfow management or enmployees, in the normal course of performing thelr assigned
funclions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requiremeant of a federal program an &
timely hasis. A significant deficiency 15 a conlral deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely
affects the City of Wahpetor's ability to administer a federal program such that there s more than a remote
tkefihood that noncompliance with a type of compfiance reguirement of a faderal program that is more than

inconsequential will not be pravented or detected by the Cily of Wahpeton's inlernal controf.
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A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that re
a rermote likefihood that material noncompliancs with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented or detected by the Cily of Wahpefon’s internal control.

Cur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and would not necessarlly idenlify aff deficiencies in infernal control that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compiiance Lhat
we consider to be material waaknesses, as defined above,

This report is intended selaly for the information and use of managemant, the City Council and others within the
Cily of Wahpeton, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entilies and is not infended 1o be and sheuld
not be used by anyone other than these speciiied parties.

Robert R. Peterson
State Auditor

September 14, 2009
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CITY OF WAMHPETON
Wahpeion, North Dakola

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statemenis

Type of Report Issued?

Governmental Activities Unquadified

Businass- Type Activities Unqualified

Discrefely Fresented Component Unit Ungualified

Mzior Funds Ungualified

Aggregate Remaining Fund Information Unqualified
internal Control gver financial reporting;
Malerial weaknesses identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be
material weaknesses? Yes X No
MNoncompliance material to  financial  statements
noted? Yes X No
Federal Awards
Intemal Control over major programs;
Material Weakness Identified? Yes X MNe
Reporlable condilions idenlified not considerad
to be material weaknesses? Yes X Nonereported
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major program? Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with Cirsular A-133,
Section .510(a)? Yes X No
Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Namea of Federal Program Or Cluster
47.044 Asgistance {o Firefighters Gramt

Dallar threshold used to distinguish between Type
A and B programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? A Yes Na

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

Mo matters were reparted,

Section I1I — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Cosis o

Mo matters were reporied.
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CITY OF WAHPETON
WAHPETON, NORTH DAKOTA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

OFFICE OF THE STATE AUDITOR
LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION
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MANAGEMENT LETTER

City Councif
City of Wahpeton
Wahpeton, North Dakota

Our audit of the financial records, incfuding the govermnmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presenfed component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Wahpeton, for the year ended December 31, 2008 has disclosed an opportunity for improvernent in
the operations of the City. The following itern which we believe should be brought to your attention is set forth

below:

ER A

| OVERSPENT FUNDS

During 2008, several non-major special revenue funds were overspent and the sales tax reserve fund was
overspent due to an audit adjustment for accounts payable. Additionatly, it was noted that each major fund
budgeted expenditures and revenues were amended to "actual” client general ledger amounts at the
February 2, 2009 meeting. Additionally, the City received a firefighter’'s grant that was not budgeted, nor
amended. There is no state law regarding overspent city funds.

We recommend that the City Council amend any special revenue expenditure fund budgets which are
overspent, including non-budgeted and overspent grant funds. We further recommend that budget
amendments are done for fund expenditures that are overspent at year-end, but not to simply actual generat
tedger amounts to account for potential accounis payable,

R R S A

This repert is intended for the information of the City Council and management. However, this report is a
maiter of public recerd and its distribution is not limited.

Thank you and the employees of the City of Wahpeton for the courteous and friendiy assisfance we received
during tha course of cur audit. Itis a pleasure for us to be abie to serve the City of Wahpeton.

t,Z ;?;?}[-\.gﬂu_;%_tiié_f ot T’
Robert R. Pelerson
State Auditor

September 14, 2009
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City Councll
City of Wahpeton

Wahpetoen, North Dakota

We have sudited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-typa acfivilies, the
discretely presented component unit, each mejor fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Wahpeton, North Daketa for the year ended December 31, 2008 which collectively comprise the City's
basic financial statements, and have issued our report therson dated September 14, 2009. Professional
standards require that we provide you with the following infarmaticn refated to our audit,

OUR RESPONSIBILITY UNDER AUDITING STANDARDS GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA, GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS AND OMB CIRCULAR A-~133

As stated in our engagsment letter dated December 1, 20086, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reascnable, but not absolute, assurance about whether
the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement. Because of the concept of reasonable
assurance and because we did not perform a detailed examination of all fransactions, there is a risk that

material errors, or fraud may exist and not be detected by us.

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Wahpeton's internal control over financiai
reporting, in order to determine cur auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. We also
considered internat control over compliance with requirements that coutd have a direct and material effect on
a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal conirol over compiiance in accordance with OMB

Circular A-133.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Wahpeton's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants noncompfiance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
pravisions was not an objective of our audit. Also, in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, we examined, on

described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement
applicable to each of its major federa!l programs for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the City of
Wahpefon's compliance with those requirements. While cur audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion, it does not provide a legal determination on the City of Wahpeton's compliance with those

requirements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Manageiment has the responsibility for selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance
with the terms of our engagemaent letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting
policies and their applicaticn. The significant accounting policies used by the City of Wahpeton are described
in Note 1 to the basic financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of
existing policies was not changed during the year ended December 31, 2008, We noted no fransactions
entered inte hy the Cily of Wahpeton during the year ended December 31, 2008 thal were bofh significant
and unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we are required {o inform you, or fransactions for
which there is a lack of authorttative guidance or consensus.




SIGNIFICANT AUBIT ADJUSTMENTS

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a significant audit adjustment as a proposed
sorrection of the financiat stalemenis that, in our judgment, may not have been detected except through our
auditing procedures, These adjustments may inciude those proposed by us but not recorded by the City of
Wahpeton that could potentially cause future financial staterments to be materially misstated, even though we
have concluded that such adjustments are not material to the current financial statements. We propossd no
audit adjustments that could, In our judgment, either individually or in the aggregate, have a significant effect

on the City of Wahpeton's financial reporting process.

DISAGREEMENTS WITH MAMAGEMENT

For purposes of ihis lelter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, or reporting matter that could
be significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such

disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

CONSULTATIONS WITH OTHER INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the hest of our knowledge, management has not consuited with or obtained opinions frem other
independent accountants during the past vear that are subject to the reguirements of Statement on Auditing
Standards No. 56, “Reports on the Application of Accounting Principles™.

MAJOR ISSUES DISCUSSED WIiTH MANAGEMENT PRIOR TO RETENTION

There were no major issuas regarding the application of accounting principles and auditing standards
discussed with management. Any discussions that occurred were in the normal course of our professional
relationship and our respenses were not a condition fo our retention.

DIFFICULTIES ENCOUNTERED IN PERFORMING THE AUDIT

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing our audit.

This letter is intended for the information and of the City Council and management. We would be happy to
meet with you and any member of your staff to discuss any of the items in this lefter in more detall if you so

desire.

Thank you and the employees of the City of Wahpeton for the courteous and friendly assistance we recsived
during the course of our audit. Itis a pieasure for us to be able to serve the City of Wahpeton.

@mkg,)/uf;ua/x_f@& _/

Robert R. Peterscn
State Audifor

September 14, 2009
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